
          

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS

DALLAS DIVISI~ -----:.-=-=-:::=:----,
u.s. DISTRICT CDun

--------------------+-. NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,

Plaintiff,

vs.

RAY M. WHITE and
CRW MANAGEMENT, L.P.

Defendants.

and

CHRISTOPHER R. WHITE and
HURRICANE MOTORSPORTS, LLC

Relief Defendants

COMPLAINT

FIL if)
-~. ···-"l

\ ~=A3IB \
CLERK, U.S. DlSTRI

By ---:::-"7""-\:::::",-:;.
Deputy

Civil Action No.

Plaintiff Securities and Exchange Commission ("Commission") alleges as follows against

Defendants Ray M. White and CRW Management, L.P. (collectively, "Defendants"), and would

respectfully show the Court as follows:

SUMMARY

1. From at least April 2007 through the present, Defendants have engaged in a fraudulent

"Ponzi" scheme, raising at least $10.9 million from at least 250 investors by promising profits

from a purportedly lucrative foreign-currency trading program. On behalf ofhis company, CRW

Management, L.P., Ray M. White has claimed to achieve returns as high as 8.1% per week for

investors. These claims were false. Ofthe approximately $10.9 million he has received from

investors, Ray White has used approximately $93,900 to trade in the foreign-currency market.
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has misappropriated and misapplied the rest, using these funds to finance his son Christopher

R. White's car-racing career, to purchase a private company called Hurricane Motorsports,

L.L.C, and to purchase a home and other real property, among other things. He has also used

investor funds to make Ponzi payments-that is, he has made certain payments to investors,

pretending that the payments were derived from profitable foreign-currency trades when, in fact,

the payments were derived from investor funds.

2. By this conduct, Defendants have offered and sold securities in the form of investment

contracts and have violated, and continue to violate, the securities-registration and anti-fraud

provisions of the federal securities laws, specifically Sections 5(a), 5(c), andl7(a) of the

Securities Act of 1933 ("Securities Act") [15 U.S.C. §§77e(a), 77e(c), and 77q(a)] and Section

lO(b) ofthe Securities Exchange Act of1934 ("Exchange Act") [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and ofRule

lOb-5 [17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5] thereunder.

3. The Commission, in the interest ofprotecting the public from further such fraudulent

activities and harm, brings this action seeking to permanently enjoin the Defendants from further

violations of the federal securities laws. The Commission further seeks orders requiring the

Defendants to disgorge their ill-gotten gains, plus prejudgment interest thereon, and to pay civil

monetary penalties as allowed by law. Moreover, the Commission seeks orders requiring

Christopher R. White and Hurricane Motorsports, LLC, named herein as Relief Defendants, to

disgorge their ill-gotten gains.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

4. The investments offered and sold by the Defendants are "securities" under Section 2(1)

of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77b] and Section 3(a)(10) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §

78c].
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The Commission brings this action pursuant to the authority conferred upon it by Section

20(b) ofthe Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77t(b)], and Sections 21(d) 21(e) and 27 of the Exchange

Act [15 U.S.C. § 78u(d), 78u(e) and 78(aa)].

6. Defendants, directly or indirectly, made use ofthe means or instruments of transportation

and communication, and the means or instrumentalities of interstate commerce, or of the mails,

in connection with the transactions, acts, practices, and courses ofbusiness alleged herein.

Certain of the transactions, acts, practices, and courses ofbusiness alleged herein took place in

the Northern District of Texas.

DEFENDANTS

7. CRW Management, L.P. ("CRW") is a Texas-registered limited partnership located in

Mansfield, Texas. Ray M. White is CRW's general partner and controls its operations.

8. Ray M. White ("Ray White"), aged 50, resides in Mansfield, Texas. Ray White has

never been registered with the Commission or with the Commodities Futures Trading

Commission ("CFTC") in any capacity. Ray White has never been licensed to sell securities.

RELIEF DEFENDANTS

9. Christopher R. White ("Christopher White"), aged 22, resides in Mansfield, Texas, and

is Defendant Ray White's son. Christopher White improperly received funds and assets as a

10. Hurricane Motorsports, L.L.C. ("Hurricane Motorsports") is a Texas-registered limited

liability company located in Arlington, Texas. Ray White and Christopher White co-manage

Hurricane Motorsports, which is purportedly in the business ofbuilding and selling kit-based

sports cars.

The Defendants' Investment Scheme

11. Since at least April 2007, Ray White and CRW have engaged in a fraudulent Ponzi
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raising at least $10.9 million from approximately 250 investors in at least 22 states.

Acting on behalf ofhis company, CRW, Ray White promised investors that their money would

be pooled into a "fund" and that they would receive profits from a lucrative foreign-currency

trading program that he operated through CRW. Ray White led investors to believe that his

special expertise at trading foreign currencies-sometimes called "Forex" trading-would yield

exceptional returns. He claimed to achieve returns from 6.3% to 8.1 % per week. In reality, Ray

White was not a successful foreign-currency trader, and he had no lucrative foreign-currency

trading fund or program. Indeed, he filed bankruptcy in 2003 and in 2006, a fact he concealed

from investors.

12. To participate in the program, Ray White required investors to fill out a one-page

enrollment form, calling for their contact information and the amount of their investment. On

the form, investors acknowledged "that this like any investment has risk" and that "[t]his fund is

not insured or guaranteed, risk oflose (sic) of funds in possible." On Ray White's instruction, at

least one investor completed a form entitled "Asset Management Agreement." This form

represented that CRW "shall provide advice and services regarding the assets provided to invest

in FOREX" and "will be responsible for investment into the FOREX market and Management of

funds for personal growth."

13. Ray White and CRW charged some investors 10% of earnings and others 20% of

earnings to participate in the program. On Ray White's instruction, investors sent their

investment payments by check to Ray White or wired their investment payments to a CRW bank

account controlled by Ray White.

14. In the scheme's early stages, Ray White sent certain investors account statements

purporting to reflect the performance oftheir investments. The account statements showed that,
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some cases, investors were earning monthly returns over 30%. Ray White told the investors

that he had generated these high returns by trading foreign currencies overnight. Impressed by

the purported returns, some of these investors informed their friends and family members, some

ofwhom subsequently invested with the Defendants. In reality, Ray White had simply

fabricated the account statements, and the claims ofhigh monthly returns were bogus. In this

manner, Ray White enticed investors into the scheme through word-of-mouth referrals from

existing investors.

15. As the scheme continued, Ray White periodically sent investors additional fictitious

account statements. For example, Ray White sent one investor a monthly statement dated

October 6, 2008, reflecting that, from May 2008, her investment of approximately $250,000 had

grown to $435,000. In reality, her investment had not increased at all.

16. At the time ofher investment, Ray White promised to pay this investor $5,000 per month

from the profits generated in the foreign-currency program. Despite generating no profits, Ray

White paid her $5,000 per month until December 2008. When the January 2009 payment failed

to appear, the investor asked Ray White to return all ofher funds. White emailed her on January

16,2009, informing her that "her complete funds are being released into her [bank] today." In

reality, the funds were not released into her bank, and she still has not received them.

17. The Defendants' enrollment form, Asset Management Agreement, and periodic

statements, described above, all served to deceive investors into believing that the investment

program was legitimate when, in fact, it was a fraudulent Ponzi scheme.

The Defendants Misappropriated and Misapplied Investor Funds

18. Contrary to their promises regarding how they would use investor funds, Ray White and

CRW have misappropriated and misapplied investor funds. In fact, of the approximately $10.9
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raised, they traded foreign currencies with approximately $93,900. These trades were

ultimately unsuccessful, however, and the vast majority of the approximately $93,900 was lost.

19. Apart from the approximately $93,900 used to trade foreign currencies, the Defendants

spent, transferred, and otherwise disposed of investor funds in a manner contrary to their investor

promises. For example, the Defendants have made approximately $4.5 million in Ponzi

payments to investors to create the illusion that their investments were profitable. Some

investors received more money from the Defendants than they had invested with the Defendants.

Most investors, however, received either no payments or payments amounting to less than their

investments with the Defendants.

20. In addition, included in the Defendants' misappropriation and misapplication of investor

funds are payments of at least the following amounts:

A. Payments to Ray White: $177,251.98

B. Purchase ofRay White's House: $164,000.00

C. Purchase ofReal Property near Tyler Texas: $205,595.00

D. Payments to Christopher White: $81,590.35

E. Purchase of Vehicle for Christopher White: $59,062.29

F. Payments for Car-Racing Activities: $431,660.31

G. Purchase of Other Vehicles: $73,088.42

H. Payments for Hurricane Motorsports: $127,000.00

I. Payments to Third Parties: $3,472,661.70
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Defendants Have Repeatedly Lied to Investors to Avoid Detection

21. On November 24, 2008, Ray White sent an e-mail to some investors informing them that,

as of December 1,2008, CRW would cease the foreign-currency trading program. The e-mail

stated that Ray White and CRW would distribute funds to investors between December 10 and

19,2008. To date, this distribution has not occurred. In the email, Ray White falsely stated that

CRW was ceasing operations because "Banking and Homeland Security procedure changes" had

become "a very large obstacle to overcome and still provide the funding transfers in the time

frame most clients feel is needed." Ray White further falsely stated in the email that investor

funds were safe and that he had "always been conservative with your funds as well as the

operation ofbusiness."

22. Since sending the above email, Ray White has given investors numerous other false

excuses purporting to explain why the Defendants have not returned the funds. For example, he

told investors that banking holidays were preventing the distribution, that a "legal group" was

verifying accounts to determine the disbursements, and that Ray White had turned the funds over

to an escrow agent who would contact all of the investors to return their funds. As recently as

January 24,2009, Ray White falsely told at least two investors that all investor money is safe and

that they will all receive their money back.

FIRST CLAIM

Violations of Section 17(a) of the Securities Act

23. Plaintiff Commission repeats and incorporates paragraphs 1 through 22 of this Complaint

by reference as if set forth verbatim.

24. The Defendants, directly or indirectly, singly or in concert with others, in the offer or sale

of securities, by use of the means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce and by use of the
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have: (a) employed devices, schemes, and artifices to defraud; (b) obtained money or

property by means ofuntrue statements of a material fact and omitted to state a material fact

necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which they

were made, not misleading; and (c) engaged in transactions, practices, and courses ofbusiness

which operate or would operate as a fraud and deceit upon the purchasers.

25. As a part of and in furtherance oftheir scheme, the Defendants, directly and indirectly,

prepared, disseminated, or used contracts, written offering documents, promotional materials,

investor and other correspondence, and oral presentations, which contained untrue statements of

material facts and misrepresentations ofmaterial facts, and which omitted to state material facts

necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which they

were made, not misleading, including, but not limited to, those set forth in Paragraphs 1 through

22, above.

26. With respect to violations of Sections 17(a)(2) and (3) of the Securities Act, the

Defendants were negligent in their actions regarding the representations and omissions alleged

herein. With respect to violations of Section 17(a)(I) of the Securities Act, the Defendants made

the above-referenced misrepresentations and omissions knowingly or with severe recklessness

regarding the truth.

27. By reason of the foregoing, the Defendants have violated and, unless enjoined, will

continue to violate Section 17(a) ofthe Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77q(a)].
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CLAIM

Violations of Section lO(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule lOb-5

28. Plaintiff Commission repeats and incorporates paragraphs 1 through 22 of this Complaint

by reference as if set forth verbatim.

29. The Defendants, directly or indirectly, singly or in concert with others, in connection with

the purchase or sale of securities, by use of the means and instrumentalities of interstate

commerce and by use of the mails have: (a) employed devices, schemes, and artifices to

defraud; (b) made untrue statements of a material fact and omitted to state a material fact

necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which they

were made, not misleading; and (c) engaged in acts, practices, and courses ofbusiness which

operate or would operate as a fraud and deceit upon purchasers, prospective purchasers, and any

other persons.

30. As a part of and in furtherance of their scheme, the Defendants, directly and indirectly,

prepared, disseminated, or used contracts, written offering documents, promotional materials,

investor and other correspondence, and oral presentations, which contained untrue statements of

material facts and misrepresentations ofmaterial facts, and which omitted to state material facts

necessary in order to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which they

were made, not misleading, including, but not limited to, those set forth in Paragraphs 1 through

22 above.

31. The Defendants made the above-referenced misrepresentations and omissions knowingly

or with severe recklessness regarding the truth.
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By reason ofthe foregoing, the Defendants violated and, unless enjoined, will continue to

violate Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 thereunder [17

C.F.R. § 240.10b-5].

THIRD CLAIM

Violations of Section 5(a) and 5(c) of the Securities Act

33. Plaintiff Commission repeats and incorporates paragraphs 1 through 22 of this Complaint

by reference as if set forth verbatim.

34. Defendants, directly or indirectly, singly and in concert with others, have been offering to

sell, selling, and delivering after sale, certain securities, and have been, directly and indirectly:

(a) making use of the means and instruments of transportation and communication in interstate

commerce and of the mails to sell securities, through the use ofwritten contracts, offering

documents and otherwise; (b) carrying and causing to be carried through the mails and in inter-

state commerce by the means and instruments of transportation, such securities for the purpose

of sale and for delivery after sale; and (c) making use of the means or instruments of

transportation and communication in interstate commerce and of the mails to offer to sell such

securities.

35. As described in paragraphs 1 through 22, the investments described herein have been

offered and sold to the public. No registration statements were ever filed with the Commission

or otherwise in effect with respect to these securities.

36. By reason of the foregoing, the Defendants have violated and, unless enjoined, will

continue to violate Sections 5(a) and 5(c) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. §§ 77e(a) and 77e(c)].
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REQUESTED

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests that this Court:

I.

Permanently enjoin Defendants from violating Sections 5(a), 5(c), and 17(a) of the

Securities Act and Section 1O(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 thereunder.

II.

Order the Defendants to disgorge an amount equal to the funds and benefits obtained

illegally as a result of the violations alleged, plus prejudgment interest on that amount.

III.

Order the Defendants to pay civil monetary penalties in an amount determined as

appropriate by the Court pursuant to Section 20(d) ofthe Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77t(d)] and

Section 21(d) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78u(d)] for the violations alleged herein.
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IV.

Order the Relief Defendants to disgorge an amount equal to the value of all illegally obtained

funds, assets, and other benefits.

V.

Order such further relief as this Court may deem just and proper.

Respectfully submitted,

DATED: March 4,2009

RE: SEC v. Ray M White, et a/.
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